MTBE BLUE RIBBON PANEL Meeting Minutes January 22, 1999 Crystal City Marriott Arlington, VA

OPENING REMARKS

The first meeting of the Blue Ribbon Panel to review the use of Methyl Tertiary Butyl Ether (MTBE) and oxygenates in gasoline was held on January 22, 1999, at the Crystal City Marriott in Arlington, Virginia. Karen Smith, EPA's designated federal official for the MTBE Blue Ribbon Panel, began the meeting by welcoming the Panel members and attendees. There were approximately one hundred public citizens in attendance at the meeting. Ms. Smith then introduced Bob Perciasepe, Assistant Administrator of EPA's Office of Air and Radiation. Mr. Perciasepe briefly explained that the Panel was formed to address the health and water quality concerns that have come with the reformulated gasoline (RFG) program, which has been extremely successful in reducing ozone and toxics. Because EPA must maintain both clean air and clean water, there is a difficult mix of issues to reconcile. At the request of EPA Administrator Carol Browner, EPA hopes to understand and identify the issues stemming from the use of MTBE and oxygenates in gasoline to present a recommendation to the Administrator. The goal of the Panel is to clarify and identify issues, convey the facts, and develop a sense of what the facts tell us we should or should not do regarding the use of MTBE and oxygenates in gasoline. These issues are being addressed now because there is: (1) increasing discovery of contamination in water resources; (2) conflicting science and reports about the health effects of MTBE; and (3) states are very involved in taking actions on MTBE.

Mr. Perciasepe reiterated that there is no easy solution to this conflict. In order to sort through the information, EPA needs a reasoned assessment of the problem based on facts. It is a big challenge to manage the two risks when there are tremendous public health benefits to air quality, and emerging public health concerns with water quality.

Mr. Chuck Fox, EPA Assistant Administrator of Water, then explained that Administrator Browner has a keen interest in protecting the air and water of this nation, and she is looking for the Panel to provide some recommendations and ideas. Mr. Fox stated that there are data showing that MTBE is showing up in surface, ground and drinking water supplies. There is some evidence that MTBE is coming from underground storage tanks, two-stroke marine engines, and run-off. Clearly, MTBE poses aesthetic issues (i.e., smell) and people will notice MTBE at low levels.

The Panel Chair, Daniel Greenbaum, Health Effects Institute (HEI) President, was then introduced and proceeded to cover the charge to the Panel, operating principles of the meetings,

the proposed meetings, dates, and the meeting process. The six meetings of the Panel will include various presentations to help educate the Panel on existing work already completed. The Panel's task will be to provide independent advice and council to the Administrator on the use of oxygenates in gasoline. Further, the Panel will also be asked to look at proven air quality benefits from the fuel, the role of fuel components, contamination of water, challenges of remediation, health effects of oxygenates, and what has already been learned as a baseline. The Panel will need to address possible changes to the additive, which could significantly effect the nation's fuel supply. Mr. Greenbaum stated that the following principles are very important to the Panel's effort:

- 1) Open process (Panel discussions, presentations, public comments)
- 2) Fact finding effort, both far reaching and balanced
- 3) Panel proceed with no predetermined positions about the solution
- 4) Provide translation to terms (acronyms) because of wide diversity within the Panel.

Six meetings will take place in different locations (including Boston and California) to reach out and hear what people are finding and bring that information into the deliberations. The goal is to glean from key findings and integrate across multiple disciplines. And, as the Panel moves forward, to identify major policy options available. The Panel will produce a concise report for policy makers to understand key issues and make decisions using all expertise available. Mr. Greenbaum concluded with the issues of: (1) additional information needs; (2) issues we should be addressing that are not included; and (3) how to make the time table work. Following Mr. Greenbaum's introduction, the Panel members each provided a brief introduction, which included their affiliation and experiences in dealing with MTBE and oxygenates.

PANEL INTRODUCTIONS

Mark Beuhler, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, stated that the water utilities are pleased with the Panel. The utilities also feel that aesthetics are as important as health related issues because MTBE can be detected by smell before it becomes a health concern. He mentioned concern from the water utilities that contamination from surface and ground water is treated much differently. Mr. Beuhler stated that underground storage tanks are not the only cause of contamination.

Robert Campbell, Sunoco, Inc., explained that Sunoco has a large stake in MTBE as the largest manufacturer and supplier of RFG in the Northeastern United States. MTBE is a large part of Sunoco's refinery supply. Sunoco is a large marketer of a product that contains MTBE, and the company has several thousand service stations, which have all completed the tank replacement program. Sunoco will not supply gasoline to a station that has not yet replaced its tanks. Mr. Campbell has concerns about MTBE, and about individual states creating their own fuel programs. Mr. Campbell expressed the need for upcoming fuel related issues (Phase II RFG in the year 2000, and potential sulfur reductions) should be integrated into the MTBE and

oxygenated fuel discussions.

Roger Conway, U.S. Department of Agriculture, expressed interest in how the oxygenated fuel market may affect future ethanol demand and helping where possible to help contribute to the Panel to facilitate recommendations.

Cynthia Dougherty, EPA Office of Water, expressed interest from the water program perspective to understand what is happening with MTBE nationally, and what the Office of Water can do to prevent MTBE from getting into water supplies.

Dr. Patricia Ellis, Delaware Department of Natural Resources (DNR), is a hydrologist, and manages water clean ups and investigations. Many states now develop risk-based corrective action programs to decide how much MTBE can safely be left in the ground, and how much can be cleaned up. The lack of MTBE data has caused problems with determining safety levels. Many states have state fund programs that finance clean ups. The states need guidance on clean up, and need more human health studies to help accurately explain the situation to local citizens. Ms. Ellis stated that tanks will leak regardless of whether they are in compliance or not.

Bill Farland, EPA Office of Research and Development (ORD), explained the mission of the environmental assessment group within ORD to do research related to human health and ecological risks, and assessments to demonstrate innovative approaches and communicate risks to the public. Mr. Farland hopes to provide translation on some of these difficult issues related to human health risk assessment in the face of uncertainty with an incomplete database.

Jason Grumet, Northeast States for Coordinated Air Use Management (NESCAUM), explained that NESCAUM represents the eight Northeast state air programs by writing technical studies and helping states when they want policy made or have a problem. States are enthusiastic about the benefits of RFG, and simultaneously share concerns about MTBE. New Hampshire's Governor has requested that the information from the Panel be shared with his office. Seven out of eight NESCAUM states use RFG (except Vermont). NESCAUM works toward assessing relative risk and communicating it to the public. Mr. Grumet informed the Panel that RFG was the number one election issue in Maine's gubernatorial election last year – the public is aware of this issue.

Anne Happel, Lawrence Livermore National Laboratory, has been working with a team of scientists studying MTBE and ground water focused on point source releases, such as leaking underground storage tanks (LUST). Their role is to look at environmental data and perform quantitative analysis of those data. Their work focuses on looking at occurrence, frequency, and detection of MTBE in ground water in California and the behavior of MTBE plumes as compared to benzene.

Dr. Carol Henry, American Petroleum Institute, currently represents the oil and gas industry. The companies Dr. Henry represents support cleaner burning fuel for clean air, but are extremely concerned about contamination in water and have devoted significant resources and efforts

toward remediation technologies and are committed to cleaning up water supplies. API policy is to be oxygenate neutral.

Mike Scheible, California Air Resources Board (CARB), hopes to bring expertise on what has happened in California, and share the benefits of a cleaner burning gasoline program. California is currently dealing with these issues, and CARB hopes to help ensure that the recommendations are factually based so that the public has confidence in the findings. CARB will have a prejudice toward the clean air benefits of RFG, and the need for air quality to be preserved regardless of the course of action taken by the Panel.

Barry McNutt, Department of Energy (DOE), has responsibilities related to analytical work regarding gasoline quality, supply, and cost issues. Mr. McNutt hopes that DOE's analytical information will help inform the Panel. DOE's goal is to make sure the Panel understands the gasoline supply, quality, and cost impacts associated with any options considered. Mr. McNutt hopes to support the Panel and provide DOE resources.

Bob Sawyer, University of California at Berkeley, is a professor in mechanical engineering and energy and environmental policy. Mr. Sawyer has a joint interest in technology and policy, and has worked with the research group that contributed to the California MTBE study delivered to the State. Mr. Sawyer was part of the advisory group to the auto oil program, which helped define the nature of RFG.

Todd Sneller, Nebraska Ethanol Board, represents a state agency to advocate the use of ethanol and ethanol based fuels as a displacement for conventional components of gasoline. Mr. Sneller has worked with the Clean Fuels Development Coalition focusing on what role cleaner burning oxygenates can play in the U.S. gasoline pool to satisfy public policy objectives. In addition, Mr. Sneller works with the Governor's Ethanol Coalition, and expressed his interest in ground water issues.

Debbie Starnes, Lyondell Chemical Company, represents a manufacturer and marketer of MTBE. Lyondell has been making and selling MTBE for twenty years, and has experience with the product, and remediating spills. Lyondell believes in the product, and believes it has contributed to cleaner air. But, the company recognizes the concerns about health effects, water contamination, and remediation requirements. Ms. Starnes hopes to provide a fuel that gives the nation mobility, and continues to protect air benefits and clean water.

Anna Virbick, EPA Office of Underground Storage Tanks, hopes to work with the Panel and hopes to identify what needs to be done.

Ron White, American Lung Association (ALA), works for a voluntary public health organization to prevent lung disease and promote lung health. Historically the Association has been a strong supporter of cleaner burning gasoline to achieve clean air. ALA recognizes the issues surrounding cleaner burning gasoline with respect to health effects and water quality issues. ALA hopes to objectively look at air quality and health effect issues, and rely on peer reviewed science to form a program that balances and preserves air quality benefits from the RFG program, without damage to the environment and public health.

Mary White, Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry (ATSDR), works closely with the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Ms. White hopes to serve as a resource to the Panel and learn from the group to convey the information to others at ATSDR continuing to work on this issue.

John Zogorski, U.S. Geological Survey (USGS), hopes to help the Panel understand contamination of ground and surface water in the United States. USGS has two programs that deal with oxygenates. The first is the Toxics Substances Hydrology Program to investigate natural processes (i.e., biodegradation) that clean up contaminated sites after spills occur. The other program, the National Water Quality Assessment Program, attempts to characterize water quality conditions or ambient water resources in contrast to contaminated sites.

Margo Oge, Director, EPA Office of Mobile Sources (OMS), has been with OMS since Federal RFG was introduced into the marketplace and is excited about the environmental benefits that the RFG program is providing, and also concerned about potential impacts the program may have on our water supplies. Ms. Oge will provide technical and policy support to the members of the Panel throughout the deliberations, and looks forward to the Panel recommendations.

EXISTING PROGRAMS

Rob Brenner, Director of EPA's Office of Policy and Analysis Review (OPAR), gave a presentation about the 1970 Clean Air Act (CAA) oxygenate requirements. Mr. Brenner presented legislative history of the winter oxygenate and RFG programs and the expectation for these programs when the CAA was passed. Mr. Brenner explained that fuels were targeted because states were not meeting the deadlines for air quality standards. To address this problem the 1990 Clean Air Act Amendments (CAAA) divided the country into different categories of non attainment depending on severity of air quality problems, and staggered attainment dates to reflect that. The CAAA also required states to show progress. Congress recognized that some states needed national controls to help meet progress goals.

Mobile source emissions contributed to air quality problems both for toxics and ozone pollution. It was recognized that tighter tail pipe standards alone were not going to solve problems, and that fuels also needed to become cleaner. Cities would need to use cleaner fuels and fuels based on renewables for energy security and to provide an economic boost to farmers. The oil industry responded with a set of reduction goals using cleaner gasoline. The compromise was an oxygenate requirement that would still secure the market for ethanol and not displace the use of large amounts of gasoline, and an alternative fuels fleet program that would continue development of other fuels. At the time, MTBE was already used as an octane enhancer. The use of MTBE increased from three percent to eleven percent by volume in RFG. The results of the winter oxygenate and RFG programs appear to be consistent with the goals of the Clean Air Act. States are relying on these programs to meet clean air requirements. The cost of RFG is

about three cents per gallon. The fuel changes have made immediate air quality benefits compared to changes made to engines due to lengthy fleet turn over time. In terms of attainment with the standards, out of thirty-six carbon monoxide (CO) non-attainment areas that initially implemented the winter oxygenate program in 1992, only nine areas remain with air quality above the CO standard. RFG is now used in seventeen states primarily to attain or maintain ozone standard or to meet the interim CAA requirement, and to meet the volatile organic compound (VOC) requirements. Many areas rely on RFG to meet their VOC reduction plan. Mr. Brenner concluded that the states still need to continue programs like RFG, or to find acceptable alternatives to keep local emissions down. There are few tools at the local level that can match the air quality benefits and low implementation costs of the RFG program. However, it is unacceptable that our clean air be at the expense of continued progress in protecting our country's water supply.

There were several comments and questions about the origination of the oxygenate requirements in the CAA, and how the levels were determined for the winter and summer programs. It was noted that when the oxygenate requirement was originally determined, it was done so that states would have the choice of which oxygenate to use. Congress gave much thought and deliberation as to how to set the standards. The underlying basis for the CAA regulations is that Congress could reauthorize the CAA at any time. However, the CAA can also continue indefinitely without reauthorization because Congress will continue to appropriate funds. Margo Oge clarified that the percentages for oxygen, VOCs, and toxics are well established in the Statute. The NOx requirement has been proposed and finalized through the Agency regulatory process. Therefore, the NOx requirement, VOC performance standard and toxic standard can not be changed unless Congress re-opens the CAA.

Further explanation was requested by the Panel to clarify section 211(b) of the CAA (Clean Air Act testing program). Ms. Stewart explained that there are health effects testing provisions in the CAA, and that registration of fuel additives is also required. The Panel members suggested further discussion of air toxics in order to gain a better understanding of current efforts. Additionally, the Panel members requested clarification on the different weight percentages of the RFG and winter oxygenate program (2.0 percent RFG program – 2.7 percent winter oxygenate program).

Slides for the following presentations can be found on the Blue Ribbon Panel home page located at: www.epa.gov/oms/consumer/fuels/oxypanel/blueribb.htm

Overview of the Drinking Water Program

Cynthia Dougherty, Director of EPA's Office of Ground Water and Drinking Water, presented an overview of the public water systems framework. Ms. Dougherty explained that it is the responsibility of the individual states to regulate public water systems. Ms. Happel, Environmental Scientist at Lawrence Livermore Laboratory, mentioned that if a regulatory determination is made on water quality (e.g. MCL – Maximum Contaminant Level), EPA has two years to establish a final regulation. Water systems would then have three years to reach compliance. Panel members stated that other prevention measures exist to protect water quality, aside from implementation of a MCL. Mr. Greenbaum informed the Panel that beginning October 1999 there is a rule that will require water systems to notify customers in a customer confidence report, of the contaminants that are found in drinking water.

Overview of the Underground Storage Tank Program

Anna Virbick, Director of EPA's Office of Underground Storage Tanks, gave a status update on the Underground Storage Tank (UST) regulatory clean up program. The deadline for owners and operators to upgrade, replace or close systems to protect against spills, overfills and corrosion was December 22, 1998. Because the regulation covers a very large universe (approximately two million tanks) cooperation was needed by state and local governments and professional trade associations. The compliance rate is estimated at 70 percent, with hopes of reaching 90 percent compliance by the year 2000. (At 70 percent, 270,000 tanks are still not in compliance, and at 90 percent, 90,000 tanks will still be out of compliance). There are concerns about other major sources of MTBE leakage aside from USTs. It was stated that even with 100 percent UST compliance, leaks would still occur (see Mr. Zogorski below for more details about point and non-point sources). A study is currently underway to determine how effective clean-up efforts have been. The Panel expressed concern about the number of gasoline stations that are still in operation, and are now out of compliance, and the potential hazard that they present. (Ms. Virbick did not provide slides for this presentation).

Overview of the Reformulated Gasoline and Winter Oxygenate Programs

Lori Stewart, EPA Office of Mobile Sources, provided background information on the goals for oxygenates that were set by Congress, and the current status of the reformulated gasoline (RFG) program. Ms. Stewart showed the percentage of oxygenate use in gasoline, and presented the status of the winter oxygenated fuel program and the RFG program. The Panel requested clarification between the winter oxygenate program, developed to reduce carbon monoxide levels, and the RFG program, designed to reduce ozone. Ms. Stewart noted that the oil industry is concerned that states are proposing individual state fuel programs (boutique fuel - specialized fuels that are different in each state) that are region specific, and that this will cause problems with compliance. Next, air quality benefits of RFG were presented, and Mike Scheible of CARB, mentioned the positive air quality benefits (reduction in VOCs, CO, NOx and benzene) of the RFG program in California. Ms. Stewart then discussed the NESCAUM assessment report published in August 1998, regarding the toxicity of conventional gasoline versus RFG in the Northeast. The report concluded that Phase I RFG reduced cancer risk (associated with gasoline vapors and automobile exhaust) by 12 percent and Phase II RFG would reduce cancer risk by 20 percent. EPA will continue to address MTBE concerns. Mr. Greenbaum informed the Panel that Phase II RFG will begin on January 1, 2000, and that the level of oxygenates in the fuel will not increase.

Interagency Assessment of Potential Health Effects of Oxygenated Gasoline

Mary White, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS), and Bill Farland, EPA's Office of Research and Development (ORD), spoke about the health effects of MTBE. Ms. White's presentation covered the Interagency Assessment of Potential Health Effects of Oxygenated Gasoline report, which was conducted for the White House Office of Science and Technology Policy. The report examined evidence from health studies of oxygenated gasoline focusing on inhalation exposures to MTBE. An important question raised by Ms. White was whether cancer risk from oxygenated gasoline is significantly different from that of conventional gasoline. Another health effects study (The Potential Health Effects of Oxygenates Added to Gasoline) was completed by the HEI, which concluded similar results.

Human Health Assessment Activities: MTBE and Other Oxygenates

Mr. Farland gave an assessment and advisory overview of the various studies that have been completed or that are currently in progress. Both federal regulatory agencies and individual states have completed studies including a water advisory, hazard assessment, carcinogen listing, cancer assessment, MCL standards, etc. However, the California reports all have different levels of authority depending on which organization completed the report. According to the Hazard Assessment on MTBE there was not enough detailed or consistent information to list MTBE as a human carcinogen. The Panel raised the question concerning the level of information known about other oxygenates. Mr. Greenbaum mentioned that testing under section 211(b) of the Clean Air Act Testing Program covers other oxygenates in addition to MTBE, but to date MTBE is the most widely researched. He informed the Panel that other areas of study are underway, including early work with MTBE mixtures, and ingestion versus inhalation. Mr. Perciasepe stated that gasoline is toxic, and questioned whether the big issue of concern is chemical toxicity or leakage. There are still many uncertainties related to MTBE, and many planned research evaluations of oxygenate toxicity and analysis of air quality trends in relation to oxygenated fuel use. Given these uncertainties, research needs must be assessed. Comments were made that EPA could give advice about MTBE contaminant levels without having a health advisory. It was noted that in addition to MCL standards, taste and odor thresholds are also very important. It was suggested that in order to gain data, a brief presentation should be given outlining the current American Petroleum Institute (API) testing. There were several comments from the Panel regarding the determination of MTBE as a carcinogen.

Ground Water Issues Associated with the Use of MTBE and Other Oxygenates in Gasoline

John Zogorski, U.S. Geological Survey (USGS), presented information on groundwater issues associated with the use of MTBE and other oxygenates in gasoline. Areas studied were chosen because of level of water use, not location of water (underground storage tank site, etc.). Four main issues were discussed.

- 1) Low concentrations of MTBE are often found in ambient groundwater and community water supply wells in some high MTBE use areas.
- 2) Some community water supply and domestic wells have had to be removed from use or treatment has been necessary.
- A variety of sources are responsible for the occurrence of MTBE in groundwater (Point Sources: refineries, pipelines, storage tanks, spills, homeowner disposal, emissions during fueling. Non-Point Sources: vehicle emissions, vehicle evaporative losses, urban runoff, watercraft, atmospheric deposition, etc.).
- 4) Active remediation of MTBE may be required at some gasoline release sites where MTBE has migrated much further than conventional gasoline hydrocarbons.

Mr. Zogorski mentioned that a paper would be released in California discussing the general tenancy of water accumulation versus dispersion. Ms. Happel mentioned that in her studies benzene has traveled (similar to MTBE) several hundred feet from site of origin. It was pointed

out that other gasoline compounds aside from MTBE were detected in water supplies, and emphasized that leaks and spills are still perceived by the public as a problem. It was suggested to further explore the point and non-point sources that are responsible for MTBE in water. The Panel was very interested in learning more about the geological movement of the ground water and requested to hear more from Mr. Zogorski in the future. Many questions were asked about migration of water, chemical degradation in water, accumulation versus dispersion, etc.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

- Bill Piel, Lyondell Chemical Company, gave an overview of the development of oxygenated fuel. Mr. Piel provided detailed history of the commercialization and use of oxygenates. MTBE is used as an octane enhancer, and as a clean burning octane alternative to lead and aromatics. Mr. Piel pointed out that there is eleven years of experience with oxygenated fuel programs, and that MTBE has been used in California for twelve years. Mr. Piel added that MTBE use is very prevalent in European gasoline, and is widely used throughout the world. Mr. Piel's presentation has been submitted to the Air Docket A-99-01.
- Susan Borghoff, CIIT, discussed a research program on toxicity of ETBE, TAME, and MTBE, which began in 1994 with support from the Oxygenated Fuels Association (OFA). The bioassay study included two different species of rodents. They conducted a 28-day study on the palatability of MTBE in water. The rodents continued to ingest MTBE despite the taste and odor.
- Terry Wigglesworth, Oxygenated Fuels Association, gave a statement on the benefits of oxygenates in gasoline. Ms. Wigglesworth offered the assistance of OFA and member companies throughout the Panel process. She stressed the importance of MTBE as a component in the nation's clean-fuels strategy for continuing clean air improvements. Many scientific studies have found MTBE to be not classifiable as a human carcinogen. Ms. Wigglesworth made note that evidence has shown decline in human cancer risk due to the decline in ambient benzene levels and gasoline vapors. Ms. Wigglesworth stated that water contamination is not unique to MTBE, and that OFA supports the need for controlling leaks from UST and marine engines. Ms. Wigglesworth provided a written copy of her statement, which has been submitted to the Air Docket A-99-01.
- Jeff Kuhn, State of Montana, informed the Panel about MTBE workgroup efforts in the State of Montana. The MTBE workgroup produces a coordinated newsletter voicing the concerns of the twenty active state members. Mr. Kuhn stated the inability to enforce water quality standards because EPA has not established a MCL, and that the human health studies are not complete. Furthermore, he expressed the need for data on both carcinogenic and non-carcinogenic effects.
- Megan Smith, American Bioenergy Association, discussed benefits from the use of biomass

ethanol. Ms. Smith mentioned the new cellulosic conversion process now in place, and added that renewable fuel could be used to substitute MTBE. It is possible to phase in biomass ethanol and then replace MTBE within one to two years. Ms. Smith emphasized that biomass ethanol should not be overlooked in this debate.

PANEL MEMBER DISCUSSION (Comments, Questions, Suggestions)

The final portion of the meeting was provided to give the Panel members the opportunity to voice or reiterate any concerns, comments, questions, or to request additional information. The comments below are a summary of the thoughts expressed by individual Panel members. However, some of the comments may have been stated more than once, or clarified by more than one Panel member.

Comments

- Water treatment technology is different for surface and groundwater
- Strong legislative reactions are very effective at raising public concerns
- California Energy Commission study addresses supply and cost (Supply and Cost of Alternatives to MTBE in Gasoline)
- Approach should be taken looking first to maintain level of air quality
- Concerned about the absence of clarity, MCL level, hard to implement programs
- Consider what may replace MTBE (if removed) lack of toxicity data, supply issues
- It is clear that all analysis on gasoline cost and supply presume preservation of gasoline quality requirements for air quality (money and time become variable in analysis) when looking to future air quality programs
- The Panel must not detract from air quality benefits
- Large air quality benefits from RFG, and reduced cancer rates
- Panel should learn more about ground water resources and water supply

Questions/Suggestions

- Further discuss taste and odor very important
- What portion of positive air quality benefits come from MTBE?
- Request more information on the air toxics benefits of RFG (Title 3 air toxics)
- How to best deal with the emotional issue public opinion and lack of understanding?
- Agreement wanted on which categories to consider, in order to determine degree of problem and plausible alternatives
- What is the best way to educate, minimize, and prevent human accidents?
- Increased understanding of ground water contamination and water treatment is needed
- A solution to the problem is hoped for, rather than MTBE ban
- Request for more information on RFG without the use of oxygenates.
- If change occurs, the fuel supply issue must be discussed in order to prevent fuel supply

DRAFT MEETING SUMMARY - MTBE BLUE RIBBON PANEL

disruptions

- Use cost benefit approach to form solution
- Consider impact of potential policy changes
- Provide the Panel with a presentation on refining process or gasoline blending process
- Provide the Panel with a presentation from California (Santa Clara) water district on how to deal with current problem
- More information requested on understanding point sources, and clean up technologies
- Provide the Panel with more passionate and emotion concerns from public
- More information is needed on aquatic health versus human health (Hear from workgroup completing study on all aquatic toxicity tests for framework for federal water quality standard)
- Provide the Panel with a level of certainty/confidence of the air quality benefits from oxygenates or alternatives
- Provide the Panel with more information on the influence of oxygenates on particulate matter (PM) contact groups who are conducting those studies

CLOSING REMARKS

A statement by Mr. Perciasepe made clear that EPA's objective in calling this Panel together is to examine how to achieve air quality and protect against any water quality issues that are in need of being dealt with. He stated that we have only begun discussions, but wanted to make sure to note concerns regarding today's lengthy discussions on water quality and not enough discussion on air quality. When in fact there are very quantifiable and significant air quality benefits of the air quality program. There are significant public health risks in the U.S. from air pollution. EPA is expecting a certain contribution from fuels to fix the air problem, and the Panel needs to work on balancing the air and water issues. Mr. Perciasepe recommended providing a strong technical understanding of the air quality benefits as this process moves forward. Mr. Perciasepe encouraged providing names or contacts to Karen Smith, of any person or project that may be beneficial for the Panel to learn about.

MTBE PANEL MEMBER ATTENDEES

Mark Beuhler - Metropolitan Water District of Southern California Robert Campbell - Sunoco, Inc. Roger Conway - U.S. Department of Agriculture Cynthia Dougherty - U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Patricia Ellis - Delaware Department of Natural Resources and Environmental Control Bill Farland - U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Daniel Greenbaum - Health Effects Institute Jason Grumet - Northeast States for Coordinated Air Use Management Anne Happel - Lawrence Livermore National Laboratory Carol Henry - American Petroleum Institute Barry McNutt - U.S. Department of Energy Margo Oge - U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Robert Perciasepe - U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Robert Sawyer - University of California at Berkeley Michael Scheible (in place of Mike Kenny) - California Air Resources Board Karen Smith - U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (DFO) Todd Sneller - Nebraska Ethanol Board Debbie Starnes - Lyondell Chemical Company Anna Virbick - U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Ron White - American Lung Association Mary White - Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry John Zogorski - U.S. Geological Survey

PANEL MEMBERS NOT IN ATTENDANCE

Linda Greer - Natural Resources Defense Council

Sign-In-Sheet MTBE BLUE RIBBON PANEL January 22, 1999 Crystal City Marriott Arlington, VA

Name and Organization	Mailing Address	Phone Number	Fax Number	E-Mail
John Brophy OMS/EPA	401 M Street, NW Washington, DC	202-564-9068	202-564-2085	brophy.john@epamail.epa.gov
Fred Potter Information Resources Inc.	1925 N. Lynn St. # 100 Arlington, VA 22209	703-528-2500	703-528-1984	Potter@motorfuels.com
Roy Hodgen Lyondell Chemical Co.	3801 West Chester Pike Newtown Square, PA 19073	610-359-5670	610-359-2246	CCNSRJH@arcochem.com
Doug Durante Clean Fuels Development Coal	1925 North Lynn St. Waterview, Suite #725, Arlington, VA 22209	703-276-2332	703-276-8447	Durantes@aol.com
Joe Marcinek Mobile Oil	3225 Gallows Rd. Fairfax, VA 22037	703-849-7509	703-849-7519	Joe_A_Marcinek@email.mobil. com
Chris Primavera Nissan	750 17th St, N.W. Suite 900 Washington, DC 20006- 4607	202-862-5523	202-457-0851	christina.primavera@nissan- usa.com
Holly Saffold Exxon Company, USA	1900 E. Linden Ave. Linden, NJ 07036	908-474-2614	908-474-2620	holly.m.saffold@exxon.sprint.c om
Robert G. Tardiff Sapphire Group, Inc	Suite 760 3 Bethesda Metro Center, Bethesda, MD 20814	301-664-8406	301-664-8403	RGT1@erols.com
Cynthia Dougherty US EPA Office of Water	401 M St. SW Washington, DC 20460	202-260-5543	202-260-4383	

Name and Organization	Mailing Address	Phone Number	Fax Number	E-Mail
Mark Beuhler Metropolitan Water District of Southern California	700 N. Alameda St. Los Angeles, CA 90012	213-217-6647	213-217-6951	mbeuhler@mwd.dst.ca.us
Arlene Kabei Region 9 USEPA	75 Hawthorne St. San Francisco, CA 94105	415-744-1027	415-744-1044	akabei@epamail.epa.gov
Maureen Lewison EPA/OUST	401 M St. SW Washington, DC 20460	703-603-7143		lewison.maureen@epa.gov
Rachel Sakata OGWOW/ EPA	401 M St. SW Washington, DC 20460	202-260-2527	202-260-3762	sakata.Rachel@epa.gov
Kevin Fast Hunton & Williams	1900 K. Street, NW Washington, DC 20006	202-955-1519	202-778-22021	kfast@hunton.com
David Holt Information Resources Inc.	1925 N. Lynn St. Suite 100 Arlington, VA 22209	703-528-2500	703-528-1603	david.holt@motorfuels.com
James Kennedy Bureau of National Affairs Daily Report	1231 25th St. Washington, DC	202-452-5362	202-452-7891	jkennedy@bna.com
John Shipinski Toyota	1588 Woodridge Ann Arbor, 48105	734-995-3954	734-995-5971	Shipinski@ttc-usa.com
David Kortum US EPA	MC: 64065 401 M. St. SW Washington, DC 20460	202-564-9022	202-565-2085	kortun.dave@epa.gov
Susan Borghoff CIIT	6 Davis Drive Research Triangle Park, NC 27709	919-558-1258	919-558-1300	Borghoff@ciit.org
Tom Wylie Sunoco, Inc.	1130 Connecticut Avenue # 710 Washington, DC 20036	202-628-1010	202-628-1041	thomas_1_wylie@sunoil.com
Marc Sisk TOSCO Corp.	1133 Z St. NW, Suite 500 Washington, DC 20036	202-293-8815	202-293-7994	msisk@gorconlaw.com

Name and Organization	Mailing Address	Phone Number	Fax Number	E-Mail
Terry Wigglesworth Oxygenated Fuels Association	1300 N. 17th St. Suite 1850 Arlington, VA 22209	703-841-7100	703-841-7720	twiggs@bellatlantico.net
Tom Wigglesworth NPRA	1899 L. Street, NW Suite 1000 Washington, DC 20036-3896	202-457-0480	202-457-0486	tom_wigglesworth@npradc.org
Donald Robinson ICF Kaiser, Inc.	9300 Lee Hwy Fairfax, VA	703-218-2512		drobinson@icfkaiser.com
J. Michael Davis US EPA	NCEA (MD-52) RTP, NC 27711	919-541-4162	919-541-0245	davis. jmichael@epa.gov
David Knoll SUNOCO	1801 Market St. Philadelphia, PA 19103	215-977-3333	215-977-3559	
Wayne Miller SUNOCO	P.O. Box 1135 Marcus Hook, PA 19061	610-859-5579	610-859-5980	wayne_miller@sunoil.com
Hosein Shapouri USDA/OEPNU	1800 M St. NW Washington, DC 20036	202-694-5018	202-694-5665	hoseins@econ.ag.gov
Kevin Anderson NPRA	1899 L. St. NW # 1000 Washington, DC 20036	202-457-0480	202-457-0486	kevin_anderson@npradc.org
Barry Garelick US EPA (64065)	401 M St. SW Washington, DC 20460	202-564-9028	202-565-2085	garelick.barry@epa.gov
Naomi Munson Bork & Associates	700 13th St. NW Washington, DC	202-508-3173	202-393-5161	nmunson@bork.com
Tien D. Nguyen Dept. Of Energy, EE-31	1000 Independence Ave, NW Washington, DC 20585-0121	202-586-7387	202-586-9815	tien.nguyen@ee.doe.gov
Dale D. Young Lyondell Chemical	5910 Elmwood Hill Ln. Kingwood, Texas 77345	281-361-8954	281-361-8956	cnsddy@archchem.com

Name and Organization	Mailing Address	Phone Number	Fax Number	E-Mail
Jeff Kuhn (ASTSWMO) Association State & Terroritory Waste Management Officials	Montana DEQ P.O. Box 200901 Helena, MT 59620-0901	406-444-5970	406-444-1901	jkuhn@mt.gov
Tim Hogan NPRA	1899 L. St. NW Washington, DC 20036	202-457-0480	202-457-0486	Tim_Hogan@npradc.org
Megan Smith American Bioenergy Assoc.	1117 Alden Rd. Alexandria, VA 22308	202-467-6540	202-467-6541	msmith@erols.com
Debbie Wood US EPA	MC: 6406J 401 M St. SW Washington, DC 20460	202-564-9249	202-565-2084	
Edlu Thom Lyondell	700 13th St. NW # 950 Washington, DC 20005	202-434-8938	202-434-4585	CNSEJT@arcochem.com
Charlie Drevna OFA	1300 N. 17th St. # 1850 Arlington, VA 22209	703-841-7100	703-841-7720	ctd@bellatlantic.com
Ned Griffith Lyondell Chemical Co.	3801 West Chester Pile Newtown Square PA 19073	610-359-3200	610-359-2122	CNSEDG@arcochem.com
Dawn Martin US EPA	401 M St. SW, Washington, DC 20460	202-260-7400	202-260-5155	martin.dawn@epa.gov
Linda Reidt Critchfield US EPA	401 M St. SW, Washington, DC 20460	202-260-8594	202-401-4761	critchfield.linda@epa.gov
Frank Maisano	2025 M. St. Suite 350 Potomac Communications	202-466-7391	202-463-1338	fmaisano@pcgpr.com
Tammy Croote	OAQPS, MD-10 EPA, NC 27711	919-541-1051	919-541-2464	croote.tammy@epa.gov
Christine Sansevero	401 M. St. SW, Washington, DC # 6101, 20460	202-260-1461	202-260-5155	sansevero.christine@epa.gov

Name and Organization	Mailing Address	Phone Number	Fax Number	E-Mail
Carol Weisner US EPA	MC: 6406J 401 M. St. SW, Washington, DC # 6101, 20460	202-564-8985	202-564-2084	weisner.carol@epa.gov
Elizabeth (Beth) Campbell	7H-063 Forrestal Office of Police-DOE 1000 Independence Ave. SW Washington, DC	202-586-5590	202-586-4341	elizabeth.campbell@hq.doe.gov
Michael Lobue ARCO	601 Pennsylvania Ave., NW Suite 600 Worth Building Washington, DC 20004	202-879-9260	202-879-9287	mlonur@mail.arco.com
Sarah Armstrong Cambridge Environmental Inc.	58 Charles St. Cambridge, MA 02141	617-225-0810	617-225-0813	armstrong@cambridgeenvirome ntal.com
Katy Geatti Air Daily	1800 Massachusetts Ave Suite 500 Washington, DC 20036	202-775-0240	202-872-8045	katy-geatti@fieldston.com
Mike Phillips ICF Resources	9300 Lee Hwy Fairfax, VA 22031	703-934-3343	703-934-3968	michael.phillips@icfkaiser.com
Mary Tiemann Congressional Research Service	Library of Congress 101 Independence Ave. NE, Washington, DC 20540- 7450	202-707-5937	202-707-7289	mtiemann@crs.loc.gov
Keith Matthews US EPA	MC: 2344 401 M St. SW Washington, DC 20460	202-260-7632	202-260-0586	
Laura Catalano Fleishman Hillard	1615 L. St. NW Suite 1000 Washington, DC 20036	202-828-8867	202-293-8105	catalanl@fleishman.com
Rob Brenner US EPA	MC: 6101 401 M Street, SW Washington, DC	202-260-7400	202-260-5155	

Name and Organization	Mailing Address	Phone Number	Fax Number	E-Mail
Margo Oge US EPA	MC: 6401 401 M Street, SW Washington, DC 20460	202-260-7645		
Lori Stewart US EPA	MC: 6406J 401 M St. SW Washington, DC 20460	202-564-9035	202-565-2084	stewart.lou@epa.gov
Jonathon (Chuck) Fox US EPA	MC: 4101 401 M Street, SW Washington, DC	202-260-5700		
Zeta Rosenberg ICF Kaiser	9300 Lee Highway Fairfax, VA 22031	703-934-3949	703-934-3968	zrosenberg@icfkaiser.com
John Zogorski USGS	1608 Mt. View Rd. Rapid City, SD	605-355-4560		jzogorski@usgs.gov
Mary White ATSDR	1600 Clifton Road, E-31 Atlanta, GA 30333	404-639-6201	404-639-6219	MXW5@cdc.gov
Ronald White American Lung Association	1726 M St. NW Suite 902 Washington, DC 20036	202-785-3355	202-452-1085	rwhite@lungusa.org
Anna Virbick EPA OSWER OUST	401 M. St. SW Washington, DC 20460	703-603-9900		
Debbie Starnes Lyondell	1221 McKinney, Suite 1600, Houston, TX 77010	713-652-7370	713-652-4538	debbie.starnes@lyondell.com
Todd Sneller Nebraska Ethanol Board	301 Centennial Mall So. 4th Floor Lincoln, NE 68509	402-471-2941	402-471-2470	sneller@nrcdec.nrc.state.ne.us
Bob Sawyer University of California, Berkeley	Dept. Of Mechnical Engineering. Berkeley, CA 94720-1740	510-642-5573	510-642-1850	rsawyer@newton.berkeley.edu
Barry McNutt Dept. of Energy	PO-62, DOE Washington, DC 20585	202-586-4448	202-586-4447	barry.mcnutte@hq.doe.gov

Name and Organization	Mailing Address	Phone Number	Fax Number	E-Mail
Mike Scheible CA Air Resources Board	PO Box 2815 Sacramento CA 95812	916-322-2890	916-322-6003	mscheibl@arb.ca.gov
Carol J. Henry American Petroleum Institute	1200 L St. NW Washington, DC 20005	202-682-8308	202-682-8270	henrycj@api.org
Anne Happel LLNL	7000 East Ave. Livermore, CA 94551	925-422-1425	325-422-9203	happel11@llnl.gov
Jason Grumet NESCAUM	129 Portland St. Boston, MA 02114	617-367-8540	617-742-9162	jgrumet@nescaum.org
Bill Farland USEPA/ORD/NCEA	401 M. St. SW (8601D) Washington, DC 20460	202-564-3322	202-565-0090	farland.william@epa.gov
Patricia M. Ellis DE/DNREC	391 Lukens Drive New Castle, DE 19720	302-395-2500	302-395-2601	pellis@dnrec.state.de.us
Roger K. Conway USDA	1800 M St. NW 4th Floor Washington, DC 20036- 5831	302-694-5020	202-694-5665	rkconway@econ.ag.gov
Robert H. Campbell SUNOCO	10 Penn Center 1801 Market St. Philadelphia, PA 19103	215-977-3871	215-977-3559	
Sheri Clarke ICF Kaiser	9300 Lee Highway Fairfax, VA 22031	703-934-3012	703-218-2547	sclarke@icfkaiser.com
Mike Grabowski Colorado School of Mines	1900 31st Street Denver, CO	303-273-3246		